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The directors present the strategic report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the company is that of electrical, instrumentation and mechanical contractors.

Business Review

Company turnover for 2017 was similar to the previous year.  The result for the year gave an operating profit 
before exceptional item of £433,113.

The directors consider the results achieved on ordinary activities to be satisfactory.  Trading prospects for the 
forthcoming year are very strong and the directors are confident of delivering good profits and cash flow and of 
growing the business in the future. 

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risk for our company is similar to most companies and industry sectors, namely the state of the 
economy and related global issues. We are dependent on the general economic environment and on the sector 
of the construction industry in which we operate.

Financial instruments, risks and management
The company does not own any complex financial instruments. Its principal financial instruments comprise of 
bank balances, contract debtors, invoice financing, trade creditors.

In respect of bank balances and invoice financing, the liquidity risk is managed by maintaining a balance 
between the continuity of funding and flexibility.

Contract debtors are managed by the continuous review of credit limits and monitoring of outstanding debts.

Regarding trade creditors the liquidity is managed by ensuring sufficient funds are available to meet liabilities 
as they fall due.

Foreign currency risk

The company's principal foreign currency exposures arise from inter-company transactions with group 
companies based in Ireland. These exposures are not hedged.

Key performance indicators

The key financial highlights for the company are as follows:

2017 2016

£ £

Turnover (£) 72,651,856 70,282,194

Profit/(Loss) before tax (£) 1,121,280 (1,424,974)

Future Developments

Current year trading to date has been in line with the Board's expectations. The directors expect the current level 
of activity to be achievable into the future.
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Other information and explanations

Our people, training and employee involvement

The company's success is attributable to our team of skilled, experienced and dedicated management, 
engineering and support staff. Our short chain of command keeps us close to our employees at all times. Our 
employees are constantly updated with regard to company activity, performance, training, health and safety, 
environmental issues and future prospects. We continue to invest in training and development of our staff so 
that we retain the recognised skills and experience required to deliver best service to our customers. The 
company continues its policy regarding the employment of disabled persons and fair consideration is given to 
applications for employment by disabled persons having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities without 
the reference of age, ethnicity, gender, religion, sexual orientation, disability or marital status. The group retains 
ISO9001:2008 certification, NICEIC membership and is certified to the Achilles Building Confidence Scheme.

Health and safety at work
The directors and senior managers continue to strive to embed best health and safety policies, practices and 
awareness throughout our operations. A similar rigorous approach is adopted with environmental issues and 
we strongly support the health and safety and environmental policies of our customers and the construction 
industry generally. The group is accredited within the Contractors Health and Safety Assessment Scheme 
(CHAS) and the group is currently registered by AFNOR UK as having complied with the requirements of 
OHSAS 18001:2007.

Going concern
The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis in 
preparing the financial statements.

By order of the board

Patrick Finn Oliver Lonergan

Director Director

19 April 2018
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The directors present their annual report and audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 
December 2017.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the company continued to be that of electrical, instrumentation and mechanical 
contractors.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as 
follows:

Brian Acheson

Oliver Lonergan

David Myers

Ronan Keohane

Patrick Finn

Tony O'Shea

Bryan White

Paul Flynn

The company secretary throughout the financial year was Patrick Finn.

Results and dividends

The results for the year are set out on page 7.

The retained profit/(loss) for the financial year amounted to £975,729 (2016: (£1,219,735)) and this was 
transferred to reserves at the year end.

No ordinary dividends were paid. The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend.

Auditor

The auditor, Crowley & McCarthy, is deemed to be reappointed under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 
2006.
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Statement of directors' responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the 
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law 
the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing 
these financial statements, the directors are required to:

�

�

�

�

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that 
the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain 
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They 
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Strategic Report

The company has chosen in accordance with Companies Act 2006, s. 414C(11) to set out in the company's 
strategic report information required by Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and 
Reports) Regulations 2008, Sch. 7 to be contained in the directors' report. It has done so in respect of financial 
instruments and future developments.

Statement on relevant audit information

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit 
information of which the company’s auditor is unaware. Additionally, the directors individually have taken all the 
necessary steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of all relevant 
audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf by:

Patrick Finn Oliver Lonergan

Director Director

19 April 2018
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Dornan Engineering Services Limited (the 'company') for the year 
ended 31 December 2017 which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of 
Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:
�

�

�

give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2017 and of its profit for the 
year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; 
and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s 
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to 
report to you where:
�

�

the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is 
not appropriate; or 
the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may 
cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting 
for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in 
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material 
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
�

�

the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the 
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of 
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to 
report to you if, in our opinion:

�

�

�

�

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received 
from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such 
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council’s website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 
auditor’s report.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members 
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the 
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Derry Crowley (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Crowley & McCarthy, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

Building G

West Cork Technology Park

Clonakilty

Co. Cork

19 April 2018
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2017 2016

Notes £ £

Turnover 6 72,651,856 70,282,194

Cost of sales (68,440,328) (63,679,865)

Gross profit 4,211,528 6,602,329

Administrative expenses (3,778,415) (5,114,502)

Exceptional item 5 - (2,881,349)

Operating profit/(loss) 8 433,113 (1,393,522)

Interest receivable and similar income 9 1,647 5,490

Interest payable and similar expenses 10 (43,122) (36,942)

Profit on disposal of subsidiary 729,642 -

Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,121,280 (1,424,974)

Tax on profit/(loss) 12 (145,551) 205,239

Profit/(loss) for the financial year 975,729 (1,219,735)

The profit and loss account has been prepared on the basis that all operations are continuing operations.

There is no other comprehensive income, other than that passing through the profit and loss account.
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2017 2016

Notes £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 13 91,085 220,012

Investments 14 4,844 5,511

95,929 225,523

Current assets

Stocks 15 - 76,332

Debtors 16 30,767,422 20,069,152

Cash at bank and in hand 2,392,607 1,504,058

33,160,029 21,649,542

Creditors: amounts falling due within 
one year 17 (29,374,895) (18,950,007)

Net current assets 3,785,134 2,699,535

Total assets less current liabilities 3,881,063 2,925,058

Creditors: amounts falling due after 
more than one year 18 (422,831) (455,553)

Provisions for liabilities (2,998) -

Net assets 3,455,234 2,469,505

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 22 170 170

Share premium account 23 20,000 10,000

Capital redemption reserve 24 30 30

Profit and loss reserves 3,435,034 2,459,305

Shareholders' equity 3,455,234 2,469,505

Approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf by:

Oliver Lonergan Patrick Finn

Director Director

19 April 2018
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Share 
capital

Share 
premium 
account

Capital 
redemption 

reserve

Profit and 
loss 

reserves

Total

Notes £ £ £ £ £

Balance at 1 January 2016 200 10,000 - 4,386,554 4,396,754

Year ended 31 December 2016:

Loss and total comprehensive 
income for the year - - - (1,219,735) (1,219,735)

Own shares acquired - - - (707,484) (707,484)

Redemption of shares (30) - 30 (30) (30)

Balance at 31 December 2016 170 10,000 30 2,459,305 2,469,505

Year ended 31 December 2017:

Profit and total comprehensive 
income for the year - - - 975,729 975,729

Issue of share capital 22 - 10,000 - - 10,000

Balance at 31 December 2017 170 20,000 30 3,435,034 3,455,234
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2017 2016

Notes £ £ £ £

Net cash flows from operating activities 32 228,910 (316,675)

Investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets - (59,005)

Proceeds on disposal of tangible fixed 
assets 12,074 25,689

Proceeds on disposal of subsidiary 730,309 -

Interest received 1,647 5,490

Net cash flows from investing activities 744,030 (27,826)

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares 10,000 -

Purchase of own shares - (707,514)

Net cash flows from financing activities 10,000 (707,514)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 982,940 (1,052,015)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,390,370 2,442,385

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,373,310 1,390,370

Relating to:

Cash at bank and in hand 2,392,607 1,504,058

Bank overdrafts included in creditors 
payable within one year (19,297) (113,688)

2,373,310 1,390,370
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1 Company information

Dornan Engineering Services Limited is a limited company domiciled and incorporated in England and
Wales. The registered office is 2nd Floor Emperor's Gate, 114A Cromwell Road, London, England, SW7 
4ES.

2 Accounting Convention and Basis of Preparation

Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance with the 
historical cost convention. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are prepared in Sterling, which is the functional currency of the company.

This company is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102, being a member of a group where the 
parent of that group prepares publicly available consolidated financial statements, including this company,
which are intended to give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of 
the group.

The financial statements of the company are consolidated in the financial statements of Dornan
Engineering Holdings Limited. These consolidated financial statements are available from its registered 
office, 10 Eastgate Avenue, Eastgate, Little Island, Co. Cork.

Going concern

At the time of approving the financial statements, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus the 
directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.
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3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future 
periods. The following are the company's key sources of estimation uncertainty;

Going concern
At the time of approving the financial statements, the board of directors has a reasonable expectation that 
the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus 
the board of directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial 
statements.

Long term contracts
Profit on long term contracts is recognised using the percentage of completion method. A portion of 
estimated profit on individual contracts is taken into account based on the stage of completion. Revisions in 
estimates are reflected in the accounting period when revision becomes known. Expected losses are 
charged to income entirely when the losses become evident. 

Useful lives of tangible fixed assets
The annual depreciation charge of tangible fixed assets depends primarily on the estimated lives of each 
type of asset and, in certain circumstances, estimates of residual values. The directors review these useful 
lives and change them if necessary to reflect current conditions. In determining these useful lives,
management consider technological change, patterns of consumption, physical condition, and expected 
economic utilisation of the assets. Changes in the useful lives can have a significant impact on the
depreciation charge for the financial year. The net book value of tangible fixed assets subject to 
depreciation at the financial year end is disclosed in note 13. 

Taxation
Management estimation is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 
based upon likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together with an assessment of the effect of 
future tax planning strategies. 

4 Accounting policies

4.1 Turnover

Turnover is stated net of trade discounts, VAT and similar taxes and derives from the provision of goods 
and services falling within the company’s ordinary activities. 

Turnover from long term contracts is billed based on agreed billing schedules and certifications and any 
profit arising thereon is calculated so as to equate with the deemed stage of completion. 

4.2 Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of 
depreciation and any impairment losses.
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Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over 
their useful lives on the following basis:

Leasehold property improvements 33.33% Straight line

Plant and equipment 33.33% Straight Line

Furniture and equipment 33.33% Straight Line

Motor vehicles 25% Straight Line

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account.

4.3 Fixed asset investments

Interests in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are initially measured at cost and 
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The investments are assessed 
for impairment at each reporting date and any impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the company. Control is the power to govern the financial and 
operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 

An associate is an entity, being neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture, in which the society holds a long-
term interest and where the company has significant influence. The society considers that it has significant 
influence where it has the power to participate in the financial and operating decisions of the associate.

Entities in which the company has a long term interest and shares control under a contractual arrangement 
are classified as jointly controlled entities.

Other financial assets, including investments in equity instruments which are not subsidiaries, associates 
or joint ventures, are initially measured at fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assets 
are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss, except 
that investments in equity instruments that are not publically traded and whose fair values cannot be 
measured reliably are measured at cost less impairment.

4.4 Impairment of fixed assets

At each reporting period end date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, 
the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, assets are allocated to individual 
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for 
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Where there is objective evidence that recoverable amounts of an asset is less than its carrying value the 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount resulting in an impairment loss. 
Impairment losses are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account, with the exception of losses 
on previously revalued tangible fixed assets, which are recognised in other comprehensive income to the 
extent of any previously recognised revaluation increase accumulated in equity, in respect of that asset. 

Where the circumstances causing an impairment of an asset no longer apply, then the impairment is 
reversed through the profit and loss account, except for impairments on previously revalued tangible
assets, which are treated as revaluation increases to the extent that the revaluation was recognised in 
equity.

The recoverable amount of tangible fixed assets, goodwill and other intangible fixed assets is the higher of 
the fair value less cost to sell of the asset and its value in use. The value in use of these assets is the 
present value of the cash flows expected to be derived from those assets. This is determined by reference 
to the present value of the future cash flows of the company which is considered by the directors to be a 
single cash generating unit.

Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have 
ceased to apply. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or 
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the 
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a 
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

4.5 Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In the case of finished goods and work in 
progress, cost is defined as the aggregate cost of raw material, direct labour and the attributable proportion 
of direct production overheads based on a normal level of capacity. Net realisable value is based on
normal selling price, less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Contract work-in-progress is stated at cost, less foreseeable losses and progress payments received, 
where applicable. Cost is defined as the aggregate cost of raw material and the attributable proportion of 
relevant direct overheads.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made for impairment. Any excess of the carrying amount of
stocks over its estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell is recognised as an impairment loss 
in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses are also recognised in profit or loss.
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4.6 Long term contracts

When the outcome of a long term contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will 
be profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the stage of 
completion.

The outcome of a long term contract can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are 
satisfied: 

• total contract revenue can be measured reliably; 
• it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the company; 
• both the contract costs to complete and the stage of contract completion at the end of the reporting 
period can be measured reliably; and 
• the contract costs attributable to the contract can be clearly identified and measured reliably so that 
actual contract costs incurred can be compared with prior estimates.

Contract costs are recognised as expenses by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity 
at the end of the reporting period. The stage of completion is measured by the certified turnover as a 
percentage of total expected turnover for the contract.
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is 
recognised as an expense immediately.

When the outcome of a long term contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised 
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. 

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included in contract revenue to the extent 
that may have been agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

4.7 Financial instruments

The company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 
12 ‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments. 

Financial instruments are recognised in the company's balance sheet when the company becomes party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements, when 
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a 
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafts. 
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Ordinary share capital

The ordinary share capital of the company is presented as equity.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include trade and other receivables, and cash and bank balances, are initially 
measured at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the
transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. 
Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Other financial assets

Trade debtors for goods sold to customers on short-term credit, are initially measured at the undiscounted 
amount of cash receivable from that customer, which is normally the invoice price, and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost less impairment, where there is objective evidence of an impairment.

Trade debtors, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market are classified as 'loans and receivables'. Loans and receivables are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the 
recognition of interest would be immaterial. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating the interest income over the relevant period. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected 
life of the debt instrument to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of 
impairment at each reporting end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that 
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been 
affected. The impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire 
or are settled, or when the company transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership to another entity.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual 
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the 
assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies and 
preference shares that are classified as debt, are initially recognised at transaction price unless the 
arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present 
value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial liabilities classified as
payable within one year are not amortised.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course 
of business from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 
one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially 
at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Trade creditors are measured at invoice price, unless payment is deferred beyond normal business terms 
or is financed at a rate of interest that is not a market rate. In this case the arrangement constitutes a 
financing transaction, and the financial liability is measured at the present value of the future payments 
discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual 
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the 
assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities.

All loans and borrowings, both assets and liabilities are initially recorded at the present value of cash 
payable to the lender in settlement of the liability discounted at the market interest rate. Subsequently 
loans and borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The 
computation of amortised cost includes any issue costs, transaction costs and fees, and any discount or 
premium on settlement, and the effect of this is to amortise these amounts over the expected borrowing 
period. Loans with no stated interest rate and repayable within one year or on demand are not amortised. 
Loans and borrowings are classified as current assets or liabilities unless the borrower has an 
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the financial year end 
date.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the company’s obligations are discharged, 
cancelled, or they expire.

4.8 Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 
Final dividends to the company’s equity shareholders are recognised as a liability of the company when 
approved by the company’s shareholders. Interim dividends are recognised when paid.

4.9 Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the financial year and is calculated with reference to the 
tax rates applying at the financial year end date in the jurisdiction where the tax is applied.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxation is calculated on the differences between the company’s taxable profits and the results as 
stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in 
periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.  Full provision for 
deferred tax assets and liabilities is made at current tax rates on differences that arise between the 
recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and their recognition in the tax computation, 
including differences arising on the revaluation of fixed assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to 
the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or 
other future taxable profits.

4.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a legal or constructive present obligation as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the reporting end date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to 
settle the obligation is recognised at present value. When a provision is measured at present value, the 
unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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4.11 Employee benefits

The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs 
are required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.  

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services 
are received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably 
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

4.12 Retirement benefits

The company operates a defined contribution scheme.  Retirement benefit contributions in respect of the 
scheme for employees are charged to the profit and loss account as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the scheme.  The assets are held separately from those of the company in an 
independently administered fund.  Differences between the amounts charged in the profit and loss account 
and payments made to the retirement benefit scheme are treated as assets or liabilities.

4.13 Foreign exchange

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at 
the dates of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains 
and losses arising on translation are included in the profit and loss account for the period.

5 Exceptional costs/(income)

2017 2016

£ £

Provision for bad debt arising from liquidation of a customer - 2,881,349

6 Turnover

Turnover is stated net of value added tax and is attributable to continuing activities. The total turnover of the 
company for the year has been derived from mechanical, electrical and instrumental contracting. The 
amount of turnover attributable to different geographical markets is not disclosed as in the opinion of the 
directors such disclosure would be seriously prejudicial to the interests of the company.

7 Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the year 
was:

2017 2016

Number Number

Administration 19 17

Contracting 204 236

223 253
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Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

2017 2016

£ £

Wages and salaries 13,420,200 15,575,509

Social security costs 1,387,373 1,638,613

Pension costs 289,286 285,703

15,096,859 17,499,825

8 Operating profit/(loss)

2017 2016

Operating profit/(loss) for the year is stated after charging/(crediting): £ £

Exchange losses 68,909 67,718

Audit Fees 37,246 25,170

Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets 114,332 111,708

Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 2,521 25,597

9 Interest receivable and similar income

2017 2016

£ £

Interest income

Interest on bank deposits 1,647 4,680

Other interest income - 810

Total income 1,647 5,490

Investment income includes the following:

Interest on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss 1,647 4,680

10 Interest payable and similar expenses

2017 2016

£ £

Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 41,872 32,310

Other finance costs:

Other interest 1,250 4,632

43,122 36,942
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11 Directors' remuneration

2017 2016

£ £

Remuneration for qualifying services 441,741 624,530

Company pension contributions to defined contribution schemes 26,370 32,229

468,111 656,759

The number of directors for whom retirement benefits are accruing under defined contribution schemes 
amounted to 3 (2016 - 3).

Remuneration disclosed above include the following amounts paid to the highest paid director:

2017 2016

£ £

Remuneration for qualifying services 182,000 269,062

Company pension contributions to defined contribution schemes 22,500 8,976

12 Taxation

2017 2016

£ £

Current tax

UK corporation tax on profits for the current period 112,815 (130,165)

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of timing differences 32,736 (75,074)

Total tax charge 145,551 (205,239)
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The actual charge/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to the expected charge/(credit) for the year based 
on the profit or loss and the standard rate of tax as follows:

2017 2016

£ £

Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,121,280 (1,424,974)

Expected tax charge based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 
of 19.00% (2016: 20.00%) 213,043 (284,995)

Effect of overseas tax rates 4,509 7,429

Loss/(Profit) on disposal of fixed asset 485 5,119

Other tax adjustments 67,945 67,208

Profit on sale of subsidiary (140,431) -

Tax expense for the year 145,551 (205,239)

13 Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold 
property 

improvements

Plant and 
equipment

Furniture and 
equipment

Motor 
vehicles

Total

£ £ £ £ £

Cost

At 1 January 2017 204,474 113,116 71,997 39,555 429,142

Disposals - (12,399) - (20,605) (33,004)

At 31 December 2017 204,474 100,717 71,997 18,950 396,138

Depreciation and impairment

At 1 January 2017 90,877 83,713 31,999 2,541 209,130

Depreciation charged in the year 68,158 13,574 23,999 8,601 114,332

Eliminated in respect of disposals - (12,399) - (6,010) (18,409)

At 31 December 2017 159,035 84,888 55,998 5,132 305,053

Carrying amount

At 31 December 2017 45,439 15,829 15,999 13,818 91,085

At 31 December 2016 113,597 29,403 39,998 37,014 220,012
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14 Fixed asset investments

2017 2016

Notes £ £

Investments in subsidiaries - 667

Investments in joint ventures 30 4,844 4,844

4,844 5,511

Movements in fixed asset investments

Shares in 
group 

undertakings 
and 

participating 
interests

£

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2017 5,511

Disposals (667)

At 31 December 2017 4,844

Carrying amount

At 31 December 2017 4,844

At 31 December 2016 5,511

15 Stocks

2017 2016

£ £

Work in progress - 76,332



DORNAN ENGINEERING SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

- 23 -

16 Debtors

2017 2016

Amounts falling due within one year: £ £

Trade debtors 11,100,954 8,901,974

Amounts recoverable on contracts 10,797,188 8,224,571

Corporation tax recoverable - 406,171

Amounts due from group undertakings 7,587,280 1,226,661

Amounts due from joint ventures 977,730 956,835

Other debtors 55,138 199,534

Prepayments and accrued income 249,132 123,668

30,767,422 20,039,414

Deferred tax asset (note 19) - 29,738

30,767,422 20,069,152

Included above under amounts recoverable on contracts are retention amounts of £1,033,773 (2016: 
£2,133,521) which are due after more than one year.

17 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2017 2016

Notes £ £

Bank loans and overdrafts 26 19,297 113,688

Trade creditors 7,072,583 4,963,139

Amounts accrued on contracts 7,644,375 6,930,567

Amounts due to group undertakings 12,726,283 4,782,896

Corporation tax 125,469 60,742

Other taxation and social security 1,150,414 1,418,132

Other creditors 41,997 36,397

Accruals and deferred income 594,477 644,446

29,374,895 18,950,007

Included in other taxation and social security creditors are the following amounts:

Value added tax 458,411 775,062

PAYE/National Insurance 660,568 595,616

Other taxes 31,435 47,454

1,150,414 1,418,132
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18 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2017 2016

£ £

Amounts accrued on contracts 422,831 455,553

19 Deferred taxation

Liabilities Liabilities Assets Assets

2017 2016 2017 2016

Balances: £ £ £ £

Accelerated capital allowances 10,522 - - (33,154)

Tax losses - - - 56,190

Accrued retirement benefits (7,524) - - 6,702

2,998 - - 29,738

2017

Movements in the year: £

Liability/(Asset) at 1 January 2017 (29,738)

Charge to profit or loss 32,736

Liability at 31 December 2017 2,998
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20 Financial instruments

2017 2016

£ £

Financial assets

Trade debtors 11,100,954 8,901,974

Amounts recoverable on contracts 10,797,188 8,224,571

Amounts due from fellow group undertakings 7,587,280 1,226,661

Amounts due from joint ventures 977,730 956,835

Other debtors 1,205 1,205

Cash at bank and in hand 2,392,607 1,504,058

Total debt instruments measured at amortised cost 32,856,964 20,815,304

Equity instruments measured at cost less impairment 4,844 5,511

Financial liabilities

Bank loans and overdrafts 19,297 113,688

Trade creditors 7,072,583 4,963,139

Amounts accrued on contracts 8,067,206 7,386,120

Amounts due to group undertakings 12,726,283 4,782,896

Other creditors 41,997 36,397

Accruals and deferred income 594,477 644,446

Total measured at amortised cost 28,521,843 17,926,686

21 Retirement benefit schemes

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for all qualifying employees. The assets of 
the scheme are held separately from those of the company in an independently administered fund.

2017 2016

Defined contribution schemes £ £

Charge to profit or loss in respect of defined contribution schemes 289,286 285,703

At the balance sheet date an amount of £39,597 (2016: £33,508), was due to the fund.
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22 Share capital

2017 2016

£ £

Ordinary share capital

Issued and fully paid

100 Ordinary Shares of £1 each 100 100

70 Ordinary A Shares of £1 each 70 70

170 170

Also in issue are ten B Ordinary Shares @ £ 0.01 per share nominal value. The company issued ten C
Ordinary Shares during the year at  @ £ 0.01 per share nominal value and a premium of £9,999.90. 

The A Ordinary share holders do not hold any voting rights or entitlements to dividends, they are entitled to 
a share of the profits on sale of the company or on winding up.

The B  and C Ordinary Share holders do not hold any voting rights or entitlements to dividends, they have 
entitlement to a share of the profits on the sale of the company or on winding up when certain agreed 
cumulative profit targets are met.

23 Share premium account

This reserve records the amount above the nominal value received for shares sold, less transaction costs. 

24 Capital redemption reserve

This reserve records the nominal value of shares repurchased by the company. 

25 Operating lease commitments

At the reporting end date the company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments 
under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2017 2016

£ £

Within one year 260,550 260,550

Between two and five years 382,282 642,832

642,832 903,382

26 Financial commitments, guarantees and contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities
The company has provided warranties to customers in respect of contracts undertaken. These warranties 
are in turn supported by performance bonds which can be called on within certain agreed timescales. The 
maximum amount of the bond is £1,374,600 and it expires in April 2020.

Guarantees
Dornan Engineering Services Limited have provided a letter of guarantee to Bank of Ireland, guaranteeing 
Dornan Engineering Limited liabilities with the bank in the amount of €2,000,000, in respect of principal 
together with interest and costs accrued thereon.



DORNAN ENGINEERING SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

- 27 -

27 Related party transactions

Remuneration of key management personnel

Executive Directors and certain senior employees who have authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling activities of the company are considered to be key management personnel. Total 
remuneration in respect of these individuals in 2017 was salary of £441,741 (2016: £624,530) and pension 
contributions of £26,370 (2016: £32,229).

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS102 not to disclose certain intercompany
transactions. 

Transactions with related parties

During the year Kantor Energy Limited (registered in UK) was invoiced for contract work amounting to 
£7,529,338 (2016: £1,976,806) and for expenses recharged of £174,662 (2016: £181,112).

DorCon Stockholm AB (a joint venture) was invoiced for contract work in the amount of £645,937 (2016: 
(£941,358)).

Amounts owed by related parties 2017 2016

Balance Balance

£ £

Kantor Energy Limited 7,302,411 1,224,621

DorCon Stockholm AB 977,730 956,835

8,280,141 2,181,456

28 Events after the reporting date

There are no material post balance sheet events which are required to be reported in the financial
statements. 

29 Controlling party

Dornan Engineering Limited (registered in Ireland) is the company's immediate parent undertaking and 
Dornan Engineering Holdings Limited (registered in Ireland) is the ultimate parent undertaking.

30 Joint ventures

Details of the company's joint ventures at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Name of undertaking Registered Nature of business Class of % Held

office shares held Direct Indirect

Dorcon Stockholm AB Sweden Construction Projects Ordinary 50.00
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31 Comparative figures

In preparing the financial statements for 31 December 2017, if necessary, changes to the comparative 
figures may have been made to ensure consistency of the figure reported for 31 December 2017.

32 Net cash flows from operating activities

2017 2016

£ £

Profit/(loss) for the year 975,729 (1,219,735)

Adjustments for:

Corporation tax expense 145,551 (205,239)

Finance costs 43,122 36,942

Investment income (1,647) (5,490)

Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 2,521 25,597

Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets 114,332 111,708

Profit on disposal of subsidiary (729,642) -

Decrease/(increase) in stocks 76,332 (47,568)

(Increase)/decrease in debtors (11,134,179) 803,604

Increase in creditors 10,421,830 549,940

Interest paid (43,122) (36,942)

Tax refunded/(paid) 358,083 (329,492)

Net cash flows from operating activities 228,910 (316,675)

33 Approval of financial statements

The directors approved the financial statements on the 19 April 2018
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2017 2016

£ £ £ £

Turnover

Sales 72,651,856 70,282,194

Cost of sales

Materials & amounts accrued on contracts 12,544,196 11,852,587

Subcontractors 31,428,740 29,011,936

Project management and supervision 6,269,993 3,914,242

Site facility Costs 4,314,740 3,406,860

Movement in work in progress 76,332 (47,568)

Wages and salaries 11,991,737 13,621,008

Social security costs 1,387,373 1,638,613

Staff pension costs defined contribution 262,916 253,474

Entertaining 150,728 17,206

Depreciation 13,573 11,507

(68,440,328) (63,679,865)

Gross profit 5.80% 4,211,528 9.39% 6,602,329

Administrative expenses (3,778,415) (5,114,502)

Exceptional items

Provision for bad debt arising from liquidation of a 
customer - (2,881,349)

- -

Operating profit/(loss) 433,113 (1,393,522)

Investment revenues

Bank interest received 1,647 4,680

Other interest received - 810

1,647 5,490

Interest payable and similar expenses

Bank interest on loans and overdrafts 41,872 32,310

Interest on overdue taxation - not financial liabilities 1,250 4,632

(43,122) (36,942)

Other gains and losses

Profit or Loss on disposal of financial assets measured at cost 729,642 -

Profit/(loss) before taxation 1.54% 1,121,280 2.03% (1,424,974)
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2017 2016

£ £

Administrative expenses

Wages and salaries 986,722 1,329,971

Staff welfare 25,839 31,327

Staff training 89,126 106,590

Directors' remuneration 441,741 624,530

Directors' pension costs - defined contribution scheme 26,370 32,229

Management charge - 1,098,768

Rent, Rates and Services 540,724 549,763

Office Cleaning 17,224 11,133

Repairs and maintenance 21,730 (4,332)

Computer running costs 42,240 32,431

Travelling expenses 79,097 73,193

Health and safety 591 17,923

Legal and professional fees 687,769 368,726

Audit fees 37,246 25,170

Insurance 2,451 1,836

Printing, Postage and stationery 73,393 62,167

Advertising 367,428 449,093

Telecommunications 26,765 29,081

Entertaining 61,755 1,599

Sundry expenses 78,015 79,788

Depreciation 100,759 100,201

Profit or loss on sale of tangible assets (non exceptional) 2,521 25,597

Profit or loss on foreign exchange 68,909 67,718

3,778,415 5,114,502
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The directors present their report and audited consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 
December 2017.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the group comprise mechanical, electrical and instrumentation contracting in Ireland 
and abroad. The group currently operates in Ireland, the UK, the Netherlands, Belgium, Denmark and Sweden. 

The directors do not foresee any change of activities in the current year and are confident that profitability and 
cash generation can be maintained.

Principal Risk and Uncertainties
The group is subject to the same economic uncertainties confronting all businesses. The directors continually 
take steps to identify, manage and mitigate business risk in the best manner possible. Credit risk is managed by 
proactive credit control and foreign exchange risk, while not material, is dealt with by matching of currency 
assets, liabilities and net cash flows. The achievement of turnover, profit and cash flow targets is supported by a 
marketing and accounts department which is focused on ensuring that new contracts are identified, pursued and 
won in order to guarantee continuity of operations and maintenance of company structures and that contracts 
are completed in accordance with budgets.

Market Risk
Worldwide the construction industry can be severely affected by a global economic downturn. This poses a 
significant threat to all construction companies. The directors are confident that the strength of their brand and 
the level of their customer base will allow the company withstand such threats.

Finanical Risk
The construction industry involves very significant cash flows and investment in working capital. The company 
has built a significant base of shareholders funds which has supported the business in recent years and reduced
requirements for external borrowing.

Key Performance Indicators
The company maintains a variety of suitable key performance indicators which include appropriate systems
monitoring successful contracts together with forecasts of cashflows and sales volumes.

Directors and secretary

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of approval of the consolidated financial 
statements were as follows:

Brian Acheson

Oliver Lonergan

David Dukelow

William Flynn

Paul Flynn

David Myers

Patrick Finn

Results and dividends

The results for the year are set out on page 8.

No ordinary dividends were paid. The directors do not recommend payment of a further dividend.
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Directors' interests

Dornan Engineering Holdings Limited, an investment holding company controlled by some of the directors, owns
100% of the issued Share Capital of Dornan Engineering Limited. The Board of Directors, as constituted on the 
date of this report, is listed on the company information page.

The beneficial interests of the directors in the share capital of the holding company at 31 December 2017 were 
as follows:-

Ordinary 
Shares

A Ordinary 
Shares

B Ordinary 
Shares

C Ordinary 
Shares

Brian Acheson 70 60 0 70

Oliver Lonergan 20 20 0 20

David Myers 0 0 10 0

The directors' interests in the shares of Dornan Engineering Services Limited, a subsidiary of Dornan 
Engineering Limited were as stated below:

A Ordinary Shares of £1 each

31 
December 

2017

31 
December 

2016

Brian Acheson 49 49

Oliver Lonergan 14 14

David Myers 7 7

Company Secretary

The company secretary throughout the financial year was Patrick Finn.

Accounting records

The company's directors are aware of their responsibilities, under sections 281 to 285 of the Companies Act 
2014 as to whether in their opinion, the accounting records of the company are sufficient to permit the 
consolidated financial statements to be readily and properly audited and are discharging their responsibility by:
- employing qualified and experienced staff,
- ensuring that sufficient company resources are available for the task, 
- liaising with the company's auditors, and 
- putting in place arrangements to guard against falsification of the records.

The accounting records are held at the company's registered office, Eastgate Avenue, Eastgate, Little Island, 
Co. Cork.

Auditor

In accordance with the Companies Act 2014, section 383(2), Crowley & McCarthy continue in office as auditor of 
the group.
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Directors' compliance policy statement

We, the directors of the company who held office at the date of approval of these consolidated financial 
statements are responsible for securing the company's compliance with its relevant obligations; and

We confirm that the following matters have been done under section 225(2) in fulfilling its responsibilities

�

�

�

drawing up of a 'compliance policy statement' setting out the company's policies (that, in our opinion, are 
appropriate to the company) respecting compliance by the company with its relevant obligations;
putting in place appropriate arrangements or structures (that, in our opinion) are, designed to secure 
material compliance with the company's relevant obligations; and
conducting a review during the financial year of any arrangements or structures that have been put in 
place.

Audit committee statement

The company, although meeting the requirements, has not established an audit committee under section 167 of 
the Companies Act 2014 as all of company shareholders are directors of the company and are actively involved 
in the day to day running of the business.

Statement of disclosure to auditor

In the case of each of the persons who are directors at the time this report is approved in accordance with
section 332 of the Companies Act 2014 confirms that:

�

�

so far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's statutory
auditor is unaware, and
each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make 
himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's statutory 
auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 330 of the 
Companies Act 2014.

On behalf of the board

Oliver Lonergan Patrick Finn

Director Director

19 April 2018



DORNAN ENGINEERING LIMITED

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

- 4 -

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with Irish law and regulations.

Irish company law requires the directors to prepare consolidated financial statements for each financial year. 
Under that law, the directors have elected to prepare the consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland issued by the Financial 
Reporting Council. Under company law, the directors must not approve the consolidated financial statements 
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the 
group and the parent company as at the financial year end date and of the profit or loss of the group for that 
financial year and otherwise comply with the Companies Act 2014.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the directors are required to:

�

�

�

�

select suitable accounting policies for the company consolidated financial statements and then apply 
them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable 
accounting standards, identify those standards, and note the effect and the reasons for any material
departure from those standards; and
prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 
presume that the group and the parent company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that the group and the parent company keep or cause to be kept 
adequate accounting records which correctly explain and record the transactions of the group and the parent 
company, enable at any time the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the group and the 
parent company to be determined with reasonable accuracy, enable them to ensure that the consolidated 
financial statements and Directors' Report comply with the Companies Act 2014 and enable the consolidated 
financial statements to be audited. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and the 
parent company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.

On behalf of the board

Oliver Lonergan Patrick Finn

Director Director

19 April 2018
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Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dornan Engineering Limited (‘the company’) and its 
subsidiaries (‘the group’) for the year ended 31 December 2017 which comprise the Group Profit And Loss 
Account, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group Balance Sheet, the Company Balance 
Sheet, the Group Statement of Changes in Equity, the Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the Group 
Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to the financial statements, including the summary of significant 
accounting policies set out in note 4. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is Irish Law and FRS 102 the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

In our opinion:
�

�

�

the group financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the 
group as at 31 December 2017 and of its profit for the year then ended;
the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and 
the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2014

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities 
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and company in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in Ireland, 
including the Ethical Standard issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (Ireland) require us to 
report to you where:
�

�

the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is 
not appropriate; or 
the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may 
cast significant doubt about the group and the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going 
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion 
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify 
such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is 
a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014

Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that: 
�

�

in our opinion, the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the financial statements; and
in our opinion, the Directors' Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our 
audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the consolidated financial 
statements to be readily and properly audited, and the company Balance sheet is in agreement with the 
accounting records.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Based on the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained 
in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of our obligation under the Companies Act 2014 to report to you if, in our 
opinion, the disclosures of director's remuneration and transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of the Act 
are not made.

Responsibilities of directors for the consolidated financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such 
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent 
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the IAASA’s 
website at: http://www.iaasa.ie/Publications/Auditing-standards/International-Standards-on-Auditing-for-use-in-
Ire/International-Standards-on-Auditing-(Ireland)/ISA-700-(Ireland). This description forms part of our auditor’s 
report.

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Dornan Engineering Limited for the
year ended 31 December 2017.
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 391 of the 
Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members 
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the 
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Derry Crowley

for and on behalf of Crowley & McCarthy

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm

Building G

West Cork Technology Park

Clonakilty

Co. Cork

19 April 2018
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2017 2016

Notes € €

Turnover 5 218,400,916 270,965,057

Cost of sales (191,818,499) (231,234,667)

Gross profit 26,582,417 39,730,390

Administrative expenses (22,114,212) (31,753,326)

Operating profit 7 4,468,205 7,977,064

Interest receivable and similar income 10 696 320,737

Interest payable and similar expenses 11 (130,104) (300,484)

Profit before taxation 4,338,797 7,997,317

Taxation 12 (384,412) (988,697)

Profit for the financial year 3,954,385 7,008,620

Profit for the financial year is attributable to:

Equity Shareholders 5,836,160 7,282,569

Minority Interests (1,881,775) (273,949)

3,954,385 7,008,620

The profit and loss account has been prepared on the basis that all operations are continuing operations.



DORNAN ENGINEERING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

- 9 -

2017 2016

€ €

Profit for the year 3,954,385 7,008,620

Other comprehensive income

Currency translation difference on net assets of foreign 
investments (52,861) (847,890)

Total comprehensive income for the year 3,901,524 6,160,730

Total comprehensive income for the year is attributable to:

- Owners of the parent company 5,760,025 6,471,123

- Minority interests (1,858,501) (310,393)

3,901,524 6,160,730
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2017 2016

Notes € € € €

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 14 607,915 700,642

Investments 15 78,558 381,520

686,473 1,082,162

Current assets

Stocks 16 75,267 300,896

Debtors 17 85,799,675 82,542,875

Cash at bank and in hand 11,289,467 18,497,741

97,164,409 101,341,512

Creditors: amounts falling due within 
one year

18
(55,978,522) (64,516,180)

Net current assets 41,185,887 36,825,332

Total assets less current liabilities 41,872,360 37,907,494

Creditors: amounts falling due after 
more than one year

19
(988,395) (936,324)

Net assets 40,883,965 36,971,170

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital presented as 
equity 24 1,270,000 1,270,000

Share premium account 25 41,344 41,344

Profit and loss reserves 41,413,230 35,653,205

Equity attributable to owners of the 
parent company 42,724,574 36,964,549

Minority interests 26 (1,840,609) 6,621

40,883,965 36,971,170

Approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf by:

Oliver Lonergan Patrick Finn

Director Director

19 April 2018
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2017 2016

Notes € € € €

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 14 472,053 443,674

Investments 15 1,117,651 283,413

1,589,704 727,087

Current assets

Stocks 16 75,267 193,534

Debtors 17 69,585,632 63,810,420

Cash at bank and in hand 7,669,579 15,044,133

77,330,478 79,048,087

Creditors: amounts falling due within 
one year

18
(37,228,928) (47,850,934)

Net current assets 40,101,550 31,197,153

Total assets less current liabilities 41,691,254 31,924,240

Creditors: amounts falling due after 
more than one year

19
(490,713) (301,152)

Net assets 41,200,541 31,623,088

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital presented as 
equity 24 1,270,000 1,270,000

Share premium account 25 41,344 41,344

Profit and loss reserves 39,889,197 30,311,744

Total equity 41,200,541 31,623,088

Approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf by:

Oliver Lonergan Patrick Finn

Director Director

19 April 2018
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Share 
capital

Share 
premium 
account

Profit and 
loss 

reserves

Total

Notes € € € €

Balance at 1 January 2016 1,270,000 41,344 36,145,452 37,456,796

Year ended 31 December 2016:

Profit for the year - - 7,282,569 7,282,569

Other comprehensive income:

Currency translation difference on net assets of 
foreign investments - - (811,446) (811,446)

Total comprehensive income for the year - - 6,471,123 6,471,123

Dividends 13 - - (6,100,000) (6,100,000)

Own shares acquired - - (863,370) (863,370)

Balance at 31 December 2016 1,270,000 41,344 35,653,205 36,964,549

Year ended 31 December 2017:

Profit for the year - - 5,836,160 5,836,160

Other comprehensive income:

Currency translation difference on net assets of 
foreign investments - - (76,135) (76,135)

Total comprehensive income for the year - - 5,760,025 5,760,025

Balance at 31 December 2017 1,270,000 41,344 41,413,230 42,724,574
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Share 
capital

Share 
premium 
account

Profit and 
loss 

reserves

Total

Notes € € € €

Balance at 1 January 2016 1,270,000 41,344 27,390,002 28,701,346

Year ended 31 December 2016:

Profit and total comprehensive income for the 
year - - 9,021,742 9,021,742

Dividends 13 - - (6,100,000) (6,100,000)

Balance at 31 December 2016 1,270,000 41,344 30,311,744 31,623,088

Year ended 31 December 2017:

Profit and total comprehensive income for the 
year - - 9,577,453 9,577,453

Balance at 31 December 2017 1,270,000 41,344 39,889,197 41,200,541
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2017 2016

Notes € € € €

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash (absorbed by)/generated from 
operations

35
(7,180,164) 16,380,430

Interest paid (130,104) (300,484)

Corporation taxes paid (821,122) (2,656,288)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating 
activities (8,131,390) 13,423,658

Investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (318,686) (540,026)

Proceeds on disposal of tangible fixed 
assets 62,519 96,826

Cash acquired with subsidiary 92,791

Dividends received from joint ventures 245,377 -

Interest received 2,549 7,949

Net cash generated from/(used in) 
investing activities 84,550 (435,251)

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares 11,271 -

Redemption of shares - (863,333)

Net movement of finance lease obligations 74,430 267,474

Dividends paid to equity shareholders - (6,100,000)

Net cash generated from/(used in) 
financing activities 85,701 (6,695,859)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash 
equivalents (7,961,139) 6,292,548

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 18,330,214 12,825,709

Effect of foreign exchange rates (45,422) (788,043)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10,323,653 18,330,214

Relating to:

Cash at bank and in hand 11,289,467 18,497,741

Bank overdrafts included in creditors 
payable within one year (965,814) (167,527)

10,323,653 18,330,214
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1 Company information

Dornan Engineering Limited is a limited company domiciled and incorporated in the Republic of Ireland. 
The registered office is 10 Eastgate Avenue, Eastgate, Little Island, Cork which is also the principal place 
of business for the company.

The Group consists of Dornan Engineering Limited and all of its subsidiaries.

2 Accounting convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance 
with the historical cost convention. They have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2014.

The financial statements are presented in Euros, which is the functional currency of the company.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate those of Dornan Engineering Limited and all of its 
subsidiaries (i.e. entities that the group controls through its power to govern the financial and operating 
policies so as to obtain economic benefits). The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of 
in the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss account from the date of acquisition or up to the 
date of disposal.

All financial statements are made up to 31 December 2017. 

All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are 
eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides 
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The company is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102, being a member of a group where the 
parent of that group prepares publicly available consolidated financial statements, including this company, 
which are intended to give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of 
the group. The company has therefore taken advantage of exemptions from the following disclosure 
requirements for parent company information presented within the consolidated financial statements:

�

�

Section 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ – Presentation of a statement of cash flow and related notes 
and disclosures;
Section 33 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ – Compensation for key management personnel.

Going concern

At the time of approving the consolidated financial statements, the directors have a reasonable expectation 
that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 
Thus the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated 
financial statements.
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3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the group’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future 
periods. The following are the company’s key sources of estimation uncertainty:

Going concern
At the time of approving the financial statements, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus the 
directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial 
statements.

Impairment of trade debtors
The group trades with a large and varied number of customers on credit terms. Some debts due may not 
be paid through the default of a small number of customers. The company uses estimates based on 
historic experience and current information in determining the level of debts for which an impairment 
charge is required. The level of impairment required is reviewed on an ongoing basis. The total amount of 
trade debtors at the financial year end is disclosed in note 17. 

Long term contracts
Profit on long term contracts is recognised using the percentage of completion method. A portion of 
estimated profit on individual contracts is taken into account based on the stage of completion. Revisions in 
estimates are reflected in the accounting period when a revision becomes known. Expected losses are 
charged to income entirely when the losses become evident. 

Useful lives of tangible fixed assets
The annual depreciation charge depends primarily on the estimated lives of each type of asset and, in 
certain circumstances, estimates of residual values. The directors review these useful lives and change 
them if necessary to reflect current conditions. In determining these useful lives, the directors consider 
technological change, patterns of consumption, physical condition, and expected economic utilisation of the 
assets. Changes in the useful lives can have a significant impact on the depreciation charge for the
financial year. The net book value of tangible fixed assets subject to depreciation at the financial year end 
is disclosed in note 14. 

Taxation
Management estimation is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 
based upon likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together with an assessment of the effect of 
future tax planning strategies. 

4 Accounting policies

4.1 Turnover and revenue recognition

Turnover is stated net of trade discounts, VAT and similar taxes and derives from the provision of goods 
and services falling within the company’s ordinary activities. 

Turnover from long term contracts is billed based on agreed billing schedules and certifications and any 
profit arising thereon is calculated so as to equate with the deemed stage of completion. 
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4.2 Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of 
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over 
their useful lives on the following bases:

Leasehold Improvements 33% - Straight Line

Plant and Machinery 20% - Straight Line

Furniture and Equipment 33% - Straight Line

Motor vehicles 15% - 33% Straight Line

Leased assets 25% - 33% Straight Line

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account.

4.3 Fixed asset investments

Equity investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss, except for those equity investments 
that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be measured reliably, which are 
recognised at cost less impairment until a reliable measure of fair value becomes available.

In the parent company consolidated financial statements, investments in subsidiaries, associates and 
jointly controlled entities are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any 
accumulated impairment losses.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating 
policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 

Entities in which the group has a long term interest and shares control under a contractual arrangement 
are classified as jointly controlled entities. In the group consolidated financial statements, joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method.
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4.4 Impairment of fixed assets

At each reporting period end date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, 
the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

The carrying amount of the investments accounted for using the equity method is tested for impairment as 
a single asset.  Any goodwill included in the carrying amount of the investment is not tested separately for 
impairment.

Where there is objective evidence that the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying value 
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount resulting in an impairment loss. 
Impairment losses are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account, with the exception of losses 
on previously revalued tangible fixed assets, which are recognised in other comprehensive income to the 
extent of any previously recognised revaluation increase accumulated in equity, in respect of that asset. 

Where the circumstances causing an impairment of an asset no longer apply, then the impairment is 
reversed through the profit and loss account, except for impairments on previously revalued tangible
assets, which are treated as revaluation increases to the extent that the revaluation was recognised in 
equity.

The recoverable amount of tangible fixed assets, goodwill and other intangible fixed assets is the higher of 
the fair value less cost to sell of the asset and its value in use. The value in use of these assets is the 
present value of the cash flows expected to be derived from those assets. This is determined by reference 
to the present value of the future cash flows of the company which is considered by the management to be 
a single cash generating unit.

Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have 
ceased to apply. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or 
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the 
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a 
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

4.5 Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In the case of finished goods and work in 
progress, cost is defined as the aggregate cost of raw material, direct labour and the attributable proportion 
of direct production overheads based on a normal level of capacity. Net realisable value is based on
normal selling price, less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Contract work-in-progress is stated at cost, less foreseeable losses and progress payments received, 
where applicable. Cost is defined as the aggregate cost of raw material and the attributable proportion of 
relevant direct overheads. 

At each reporting date, an assessment is made for impairment. Any excess of the carrying amount of
stocks over its estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell is recognised as an impairment loss 
in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses are also recognised in profit or loss.
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4.6 Construction Contracts

When the outcome of a long term contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will 
be profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the stage of 
completion.

The outcome of a long term contract can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are 
satisfied: 

• total contract revenue can be measured reliably; 
• it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the company; 
• both the contract costs to complete and the stage of contract completion at the end of the reporting 
period can be measured reliably; and 
• the contract costs attributable to the contract can be clearly identified and measured reliably so that 
actual contract costs incurred can be compared with prior estimates.

Contract costs are recognised as expenses by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity 
at the end of the reporting period. The stage of completion is measured by the certified turnover as a 
percentage of total expected turnover for the contract. 

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is 
recognised as an expense immediately.

When the outcome of a long term contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised 
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. 

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included in contract revenue to the extent 
that may have been agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand are basic financial assets and include cash in hand, deposits held at call with 
banks, other short-term liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank 
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

4.8 Financial instruments

The group has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12 
‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments. 

Financial instruments are recognised in the group's balance sheet when the group becomes party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when 
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a 
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Ordinary Share Capital

The ordinary share capital of the company is presented as equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand are basic financial assets and include cash in hand, deposits held at call with 
banks, other short-term liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank 
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
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Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at 
transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction 
is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Other financial assets

Trade debtors and amounts recoverable on long term contracts, are initially measured at the undiscounted 
amount of cash receivable from that customer, which is normally the invoice price, and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost less impairment, where there is objective evidence of an impairment.

Trade debtors, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market are classified as 'loans and receivables'. Loans and receivables are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the 
recognition of interest would be immaterial. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating the interest income over the relevant period. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected 
life of the debt instrument to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of 
impairment at each reporting end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that 
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been 
affected. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire 
or are settled, or when the company transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership to another entity.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual 
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the 
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies and 
preference shares that are classified as debt, are initially recognised at transaction price unless the 
arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present 
value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial liabilities classified as 
payable within one year are not amortised.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course 
of business from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 
one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially 
at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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All loans and borrowings, both assets and liabilities are initially recorded at the present value of cash 
payable to the lender in settlement of the liability discounted at the market interest rate. Subsequently 
loans and borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The 
computation of amortised cost includes any issue costs, transaction costs and fees, and any discount or 
premium on settlement, and the effect of this is to amortise these amounts over the expected borrowing 
period. Loans with no stated interest rate and repayable within one year or on demand are not amortised. 
Loans and borrowings are classified as current assets or liabilities unless the borrower has an 
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the financial year end 
date.

Other financial liabilities

Trade creditors are measured at invoice price, unless payment is deferred beyond normal business terms 
or is financed at a rate of interest that is not a market rate. In this case the arrangement constitutes a 
financing transaction, and the financial liability is measured at the present value of the future payments 
discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the group's contractual obligations expire or are discharged or 
cancelled.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 
Final dividends to the company’s equity shareholders are recognised as a liability of the company when 
approved by the company’s shareholders. Interim dividends are recognised when paid.

4.9 Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the financial year and is calculated with reference to the 
tax rates applying at the financial year end date in the jurisdiction where the tax is applied.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxation is calculated on the differences between the group’s taxable profits and the results as 
stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in 
periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.  Full provision for 
deferred tax assets and liabilities is made at current tax rates on differences that arise between the 
recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and their recognition in the tax computation, 
including differences arising on the revaluation of fixed assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to 
the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or 
other future taxable profits.
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4.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a legal or constructive present obligation as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that the group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the reporting end date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the 
obligation is recognised at present value. When a provision is measured at present value the unwinding of 
the discount is recognised as a finance cost in profit or loss in the period it arises.

4.11 Employee benefits

The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs 
are required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.  

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services 
are received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably 
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

4.12 Retirement benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

The group operates defined contribution pension schemes for certain employees. The assets of the 
schemes are held separately from those of the company in an independently administered fund. Other 
employees are covered under Construction Industry Federation Schemes. Contributions are charged to the 
profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred. 

4.13 Leases

Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are recognised in the balance sheet and are 
depreciated over their useful lives with the corresponding lease or hire purchase obligation being 
recognised as a liability.  The interest element of the finance lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss 
account over the period of the lease and represent a constant periodic rate of interest on the balance of 
capital repayments outstanding.

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term.

4.14 Foreign exchange

Transactions in currencies other than euros are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of 
the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in 
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains and losses 
arising on translation are included in the profit and loss account for the period.

The assets and liabilities of foreign undertakings are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the 
balance sheet date. The results of foreign undertakings are translated at the average monthly rates 
prevailing during the year. The exchange difference arising on the retranslation of opening net assets is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves. All other translation 
differences are taken to the profit and loss account.
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5 Turnover and other revenue

Turnover is stated net of value added tax and is attributable to continuing activities. The total turnover for 
the year has been derived from mechanical, electrical and instrumental contracting. In the view of the 
directors, disclosure of segmental information would be seriously prejudicial to the interests of the group. 
Accordingly, as permitted the directors have availed of Paragraph 65(6) of Schedule 3 to the Companies 
Act 2014 and have not disclosed an analysis of turnover.

6 Profit attributable to members of the parent company

In accordance with section 304 of the Companies Act 2014, a separate profit and loss account for the 
company has not been presented in these financial statements. The profit dealt with in the accounts of the 
parent company was €9,577,453 (2016: €9,021,742).

7 Operating profit

2017 2016

€ €

Operating profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting):

Exchange losses 402,179 30,776

Audit fees 89,289 68,228

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 350,174 283,815

Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets (8,717) (10,825)

8 Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the group and company during 
the year was:

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Number Number Number Number

Administration 81 75 64 61

Contracting 634 593 418 346

715 668 482 407

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

€ € € €

Wages and salaries 52,962,302 51,186,766 36,597,891 31,206,441

Social security costs 5,010,228 4,834,919 3,297,844 2,739,862

Pension costs 2,017,179 1,318,778 1,624,346 912,466

59,989,709 57,340,463 41,520,081 34,858,769
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9 Directors' remuneration

2017 2016

€ €

Remuneration for qualifying services 1,646,695 1,777,672

Company pension contributions to defined contribution schemes 233,835 117,746

1,880,530 1,895,418

The number of directors for whom retirement benefits are accruing under defined contribution schemes 
amounted to 6 (2016 - 7).

10 Interest receivable and similar income

2017 2016

€ €

Interest income

Interest on bank deposits 2,549 6,536

Other interest income - 1,413

Total interest revenue 2,549 7,949

Income from fixed asset investments

Income from participating interests - joint ventures (1,853) 312,788

Total income 696 320,737

11 Interest payable and similar expenses

2017 2016

€ €

Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 79,576 102,970

Interest on finance leases and hire purchase contracts 11,327 6,658

90,903 109,628

Other finance costs:

Other interest 39,201 190,856

Total finance costs 130,104 300,484
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12 Taxation

2017 2016

€ €

Current tax

Corporation tax on profits for the current period 1,626,638 1,115,211

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of timing differences (1,242,226) (126,514)

Total tax charge 384,412 988,697

The actual charge for the year can be reconciled to the expected charge based on the profit or loss and 
the standard rate of tax as follows:

2017 2016

€ €

Profit before taxation 4,338,797 7,997,317

Expected tax charge based on the standard rate of corporation tax of 
12.50% (2016: 12.50%) 542,350 999,665

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 43,559 59,695

Tax effect of income not taxable in determining taxable profit - (37,864)

Effect of change in corporation tax rate - (2,183)

Depreciation on assets not qualifying for tax allowances 7,631 10,829

Effect of overseas tax rates (293,541) (69,126)

Under/(over) provided in prior years 8,502 (44,817)

Close company surcharge - 163

Other tax adjustments 62,931 66,088

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 12,980 6,247

Tax expense for the year 384,412 988,697

13 Dividends

2017 2016

€ €

Interim paid - 6,100,000
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14 Tangible fixed assets

Group

Leasehold 
Improvements

Plant and 
Machinery

Furniture and 
Equipment

Motor vehicles Leased assets Total

€ € € € € €

Cost

At 1 January 2017 238,821 300,968 319,890 251,163 813,153 1,923,995

Additions - - - 103,455 215,231 318,686

Disposals - (13,975) - (44,891) (65,500) (124,366)

Exchange adjustments (8,358) (4,624) (2,943) (1,613) - (17,538)

At 31 December 2017 230,463 282,369 316,947 308,114 962,884 2,100,777

Depreciation and impairment

At 1 January 2017 106,143 266,625 261,150 135,711 453,723 1,223,352

Depreciation charged in the year 77,746 15,483 33,653 71,150 152,142 350,174

Eliminated in respect of disposals - (13,975) - (11,589) (45,000) (70,564)

Exchange adjustments (4,640) (3,606) (1,634) (220) - (10,100)

At 31 December 2017 179,249 264,527 293,169 195,052 560,865 1,492,862

Carrying amount

At 31 December 2017 51,214 17,842 23,778 113,062 402,019 607,915

At 31 December 2016 132,678 34,342 58,740 115,452 359,430 700,642
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Company

Plant and 
Machinery

Furniture and 
Equipment

Motor vehicles Leased assets Total

€ € € € €

Cost

At 1 January 2017 168,850 235,799 146,008 813,154 1,363,811

Additions - - 63,617 215,230 278,847

Disposals - - (21,667) (65,500) (87,167)

At 31 December 2017 168,850 235,799 187,958 962,884 1,555,491

Depreciation and impairment

At 1 January 2017 168,850 223,776 73,785 453,724 920,135

Depreciation charged in the year - 6,278 54,699 152,141 213,118

Eliminated in respect of disposals - - (4,815) (45,000) (49,815)

At 31 December 2017 168,850 230,054 123,669 560,865 1,083,438

Carrying amount

At 31 December 2017 - 5,745 64,289 402,019 472,053

At 31 December 2016 - 12,023 72,221 359,430 443,674

15 Fixed asset investments

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Notes € € € €

Investments in subsidiaries 31 - - 1,117,651 283,363

Investments in joint ventures 32 78,558 381,520 - 50

78,558 381,520 1,117,651 283,413

Investment in joint ventures

Group 2017 2016

€ €

At 1 January 381,520 71,395

Additions - -

Share of (loss)/profit in joint ventures (29,669) 312,788

Dividends received (245,277) -

Gain on reclassification as subsidiary (28,016)

Exchange movements - (2,663)

At 31 December 78,558 381,520
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In the opinion of the directors the shares in and loans to the companies detailed above are worth at least 
the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

Movements in fixed asset investments

Company

Shares in 
group 

undertakings 
and 

participating 
interests

€

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2017 283,413

Additions 834,238

At 31 December 2017 1,117,651

Net book value

At 31 December 2017 1,117,651

At 31 December 2016 283,413

16 Stocks

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

€ € € €

Work in progress 75,267 300,896 75,267 193,534
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17 Debtors

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Amounts falling due within one year: € € € €

Trade debtors 31,661,127 36,437,558 18,432,245 25,720,204

Gross amounts due from contract customers 39,857,073 33,199,011 25,247,392 21,469,120

Corporation tax recoverable 13,701 677,101 - -

Amounts owed by group undertakings 9,740,815 9,659,142 24,156,005 15,675,024

Amounts owed by undertakings in which the 
company has a participating interest 1,102,003 1,118,422 - 859

Other debtors 884,344 1,030,841 757,666 747,528

Prepayments and accrued income 1,234,263 339,992 952,418 178,798

84,493,326 82,462,067 69,545,726 63,791,533

Deferred tax asset (note 21) 469,605 80,808 39,906 18,887

84,962,931 82,542,875 69,585,632 63,810,420

Amounts falling due after more than one year:

Deferred tax asset (note 21) 836,744 - - -

Total debtors 85,799,675 82,542,875 69,585,632 63,810,420

Included above under amounts recoverable on contracts are retention amounts of €4,728,900 (2016: 
€6,874,921) which are due after more than one year.
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18 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Notes € € € €

Bank loans and overdrafts 28 965,814 167,527 940,383 34,719

Obligations under finance leases 20 169,629 108,287 156,349 108,287

Trade creditors 24,459,728 22,851,983 15,924,376 16,438,781

Amounts accrued on contracts 23,472,872 34,269,207 12,880,760 24,494,837

Amounts due to group undertakings 600,000 2,119,839 3,349,127 4,410,376

Corporation tax payable 329,217 203,786 185,715 132,772

Other taxation and social security 3,590,124 2,928,902 2,253,809 1,228,081

Other creditors 119,079 93,493 - -

Accruals and deferred income 2,272,059 1,773,156 1,538,409 1,003,081

55,978,522 64,516,180 37,228,928 47,850,934

Included in other taxation and social security creditors are the following amounts:

Value added tax 1,249,238 905,255 732,562 -

PAYE/PRSI 2,207,696 1,953,507 1,427,371 1,226,161

Subcontractor taxes 133,190 70,140 93,876 1,920

3,590,124 2,928,902 2,253,809 1,228,081

Trade creditors and other creditors are payable at various dates after the financial year end in accordance 
with the companies usual and customary credit terms. Tax and social insurance are repayable at various 
dates after the financial year-end in accordance with the applicable statutory provisions. The company has 
financed certain tangible assets by entering into a number of finance leases. These finance leases are 
payable in monthly and quarterly instalments and are subject to interest rates between 4% and 6%.

19 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Notes € € € €

Obligations under finance leases 20 236,655 223,567 215,547 223,567

Amounts accrued on contracts 751,740 712,757 275,166 77,585

988,395 936,324 490,713 301,152
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20 Finance lease obligations

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

€ € € €

Future minimum lease payments due under 
finance leases:

Within one year 182,528 121,047 168,260 121,047

In two to five years 254,949 243,361 232,358 243,361

437,477 364,408 400,618 364,408

Less: future finance charges (31,193) (32,554) (28,722) (32,554)

406,284 331,854 371,896 331,854

21 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the group or company has a legally enforceable right to 
do so. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting 
purposes:

Assets Assets

2017 2016

Group € €

Accelerated capital allowances (3,932) (38,723)

Tax losses 1,269,822 92,816

Retirement benefit obligations 40,459 26,715

1,306,349 80,808

Assets Assets

2017 2016

Company € €

Accelerated capital allowances 7,927 -

Retirement benefit obligations 31,979 18,887

39,906 18,887
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Group Company

Asset Asset

2017 2017

Movements in the year: € €

Asset at 1 January 2017 (80,808) (18,887)

Credit to profit and loss account (1,242,226) (21,019)

Exchange movements 16,685 -

Asset at 31 December 2017 (1,306,349) (39,906)

22 Financial instruments

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

€ € € €

Carrying amount of financial assets

Debt instruments measured at amortised 
cost:

Trade debtors 31,661,127 36,437,558 18,432,245 25,720,204

Gross amounts due from contract customers 39,857,073 33,199,011 25,247,392 21,469,120

Amount due from parent undertaking 9,740,815 9,659,142 9,740,817 9,659,142

Amounts due from fellow group undertakings - - 14,415,188 6,015,882

Amounts due from joint ventures 1,102,003 1,118,422 - 859

Other debtors 90,029 27,296 88,671 25,889

Cash at bank and in hand 11,289,467 18,497,741 7,669,579 15,044,133

Total debt instruments measured at amortised 
cost 93,740,514 98,939,170 75,593,892 77,935,229

Equity instruments measured at cost less 
impairment - - 1,117,691 283,413

Carrying amount of financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost:

Bank loans and overdrafts 965,814 167,527 940,383 34,719

Obligations under finance leases 406,284 331,854 371,896 331,854

Trade creditors 24,459,728 22,851,983 15,924,376 16,438,781

Amounts accrued on contracts 24,224,612 34,981,964 13,155,926 24,572,422

Amounts due to group undertakings 600,000 2,119,839 3,349,127 4,410,376

Other creditors 119,079 93,493 - -

Accruals and deferred income 2,272,059 1,773,156 1,538,409 1,003,081

Total measured at amortised cost 53,047,576 62,319,816 35,280,117 46,791,233
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23 Retirement benefit schemes

A defined contribution pension scheme is operated for all qualifying employees. The assets of the scheme 
are held separately from those of the group in an independently administered fund. The charge to the profit 
and loss in respect of defined contribution schemes was €2,017,179 (2016: €1,318,778). At the balance 
sheet date an amount of €326,730  (2016: €194,091) was due to the fund. 

24 Share capital

Group and company

2017 2016

Ordinary share capital € €

Authorised equity

8,500,000 A Ordinary Shares of €1.27 each 10,795,000 10,795,000

1,500,000 B Ordinary Shares of €1.27 each 1,905,000 1,905,000

12,700,000 12,700,000

Issued and fully paid equity

850,000 A Ordinary Shares of €1.27 each 1,079,500 1,079,500

150,000 B Ordinary Shares of €1.27 each 190,500 190,500

1,270,000 1,270,000

25 Share premium account

This reserve records the amount above the nominal value received for shares sold, less transaction costs. 

26 Minority interests

2017 2016

€ €

At beginning of year 6,621 316,974

Issue of minority interest shares 11,271 40

Loss attributable to minority interests for the year (1,858,501) (310,393)

At end of year 1,840,609 6,621
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27 Operating lease commitments

At the reporting end date the group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments 
under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

€ € € €

Within one year 472,667 483,317 179,000 179,000

Between two and five years 1,102,121 1,466,814 671,250 716,000

In over five years - 134,250 - 134,250

28 Financial commitments, guarantees and contingent liabilities

In accordance with the provisions of Section 357(1(b)) of the Companies Act 2014, the company has 
irrevocably guaranteed all liabilities, committments and losses of its subsidiary undertaking, Dornan 
Engineering Germany Limited, in respect of the financial year as are referred to in Part III, Section A, 
Paragraph 14 of that Act, for the purposes of enabling the subsidiary to claim exemption from the 
requirement to file its own financial statements.

Valuable security has not been provided by the company in respect of these guarantees. The above 
disclosure has been made merely to comply with statutory requirements concerning the filing exemption 
referred to, as in the opinion of the directors, the likelihood of crystallisation of the contingency is remote.

Borrowings and Security 
As security for sums advanced Bank of Ireland holds the following:-
● A floating charge on the undertaking and assets of Dornan Engineering Limited and of Dornan 
Engineering Holdings Limited.
● A book debts debenture.
● Assignment over various life policies. 
● Deed of assignment over deposit account, in the amount of €495,052 held in the name of Dornan 
Engineering Limited.

Performance Bonds and Security 
Warranties have been provided to customers in respect of contracts undertaken. These warranties are in 
turn supported by demand bonds and performance bonds which can be called on within certain agreed 
timescales. The demand bonds are secured by liens over funds of €351,140. Bonds in place at year end 
covered maximum potential liabilities of €9,872,631 all expiring at different dates the latest being 30 June 
2020.

Guarantees
Dornan Engineering Holdings Limited and Dornan Engineering Limited have provided a letter of guarantee 
to Bank of Ireland, guaranteeing Dornan Engineering Limited liabilities with the bank in the amount of 
€6,500,000, in respect of principal together with interest and costs accrued thereon.

Dornan Engineering Services Limited has provided a letter of guarantee to Bank of Ireland, guaranteeing 
Dornan Engineering Limited liabilities with the bank in the amount of €2,000,000, in respect of principal 
together with interest and costs accrued thereon.
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29 Related party transactions

Remuneration of key management personnel

Executive Directors and certain senior employees who have authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling activities of the company are considered to be key management personnel. Total 
remuneration in respect of these individuals in the year was €1,880,530 (2016; €1,895,418), which included 
pension contributions of €233,835 (2016: €117,746).

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS102 not to disclose certain intercompany
transactions. 

Transactions with related parties

During the year the group entered into the following transactions with related parties:

Sale of services Purchase of services

2017 2016 2017 2016

€ € € €

Group

Kantor Energy Limited 9,043,558 2,422,734 - -

DorCon Stockholm AB 736,807 (1,148,726) - -

Kantor Energy (Ireland) Limited - - 454,992 10,965

9,780,365 1,274,008 454,992 10,965

Management Charges Other Expenses

2017 2016 2017 2016

€ € € €

Group

Kantor Energy Limited - 388,697 588,160 745,827

The following amounts were outstanding at the reporting end date:

Amounts owed to related 
parties

2017 2016

€ €

Group

Kantor Energy (Ireland) Limited - 500

Company

Kantor Energy (Ireland) Limited - 500
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The following amounts were outstanding at the reporting end date:

Amounts owed by related 
parties

2017 2016

Balance Balance

€ €

Group

Kantor Energy Limited 8,343,752 1,861,961

DorCon Stockholm AB 1,102,003 1,117,563

Kantor Energy (Ireland) Limited 4,272 312

9,450,027 2,979,836

Company

Kantor Energy Limited 65,488 431,628

Kantor Energy (Ireland) Limited 4,272 312

69,760 431,940

30 Events after the reporting date

There are no material post balance sheet events which are required to be reported in the financial
statements.

31 Subsidiaries

Details of the company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Name of undertaking Registered Nature of business Class of % Held

office shares held Direct Indirect

IDSD Limited Republic of 
Ireland

Engineering Contracting Ordinary
100.00

Dornan AG Switzerland Engineering Contracting Ordinary 100.00

Dornan Engineering 
Germany Limited

Republic of 
Ireland

Engineering Contracting Ordinary
100.00

Dornan Engineering 
Services Limited

England and 
Wales

Engineering Contracting Ordinary
100.00

Kantor Energy (Ireland) 
Limited

Republic of 
Ireland

Energy Project Consultants Ordinary
66.67

Kantor Energy Limited England and 
Wales

Specialist district energy 
design and build contractor

Ordinary
66.70
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The company has established subsidiary companies as vehicles for expansion of its sphere of operation in 
the U.K. and Europe. Dornan Engineering Services Ltd. is a U.K. registered company carrying on 
contracting operations in Britain. Dornan Engineering Germany Ltd. is an Irish registered company which 
has branch activities in Germany. IDSD Ltd. is an Irish registered company which has branch activities in 
the Netherlands. Dornan AG is a company registered in Switzerland which has not yet commenced
operations.

32 Joint ventures

Details of joint ventures at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Name of undertaking Registered Nature of business Class of % Held

office shares held Direct Indirect

Dorcon Stockholm AB Sweden Construction Projects Ordinary 50.00

33 Controlling party

The ultimate parent company is Dornan Engineering Holdings Limited, a company registered in Ireland.

34 Comparatives

In preparing the financial statements for 31 December 2017, if necessary, changes to the comparative 
figures may have been made to ensure consistency of the figure reported for 31 December 2017.

35 Cash generated from group operations

2017 2016

€ €

Profit for the year after tax 3,954,385 7,008,620

Adjustments for:

Taxation charged 384,412 988,697

Finance costs 130,104 300,484

Investment income (696) (320,737)

Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets (8,717) (10,825)

Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets 350,174 283,815

Movements in working capital:

Decrease/(increase) in stocks 225,629 (237,804)

(Increase) in debtors (2,523,817) (4,070,104)

(Decrease)/increase in creditors (9,691,638) 12,438,284

Cash (absorbed by)/generated from operations (7,180,164) 16,380,430

36 Approval of the financial statements

The directors approved the financial statements on the 19 April 2018
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Section 1 

SPECIFICATION OF INSURANCE FOR CONSTRUCTION RISKS 

 

 

Name of Insurance Broker  Marsh Ireland Limited       
  
 

 

Address         23/25, South Terrace, Cork 
    
 
 

 
Telephone No :         (021) 4907 400  Fax No:       (021) 4272 555 

 
I/We confirm that the details contained in Section 2 to 5 inclusive are correct as of: 

Day                                                                  30th  Month       October Year      2018 
 

 

Signature                                                             Colm Coffey A.C.I.I. / Elaine Coleman, A.C.I.I. 
 

 

Typed Name                                           Colm Coffey, A.C.I.I. / Elaine Coleman, A.C.I.I. 
 

 

Date:                                      30
th
 October 2018 

 
 

Email:                               colm.coffey@marsh.com / elaine.coleman@marsh.com  

                 
Section 2 

 
The following details apply to the Policies in Section 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8. 
 

 
Name of Insured:  Dornan Engineering Services Limited   
 

 

Address:              2nd Floor, 114A Cromwell Road, London SW7 4ES 
    
    
 
 

 

Business Description:  
Mechanical/Electrical/Instrumentation & Processing Contractors, Maintenance,  

Project Supervisor Construction Stage, General Building Contractors 

Mechanical Electrical Contractors in respect of District Heating & Renewable Energy 
Schemes. Civil Engineering Contractors 

Provision of technical support systems and services and general ancillary services as more 
fully outlined within client's website and annual report and accounts 

 

 

 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:colm.coffey@marsh.com
mailto:elaine.coleman@marsh.com
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Section 3 

EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE 

Policy No: 

Insurer(s): 

Limit of indemnity: 

IECASA07977 Expiry Date :  31
ST

 Oct 2019  
ACE 

GBP£ 10,000,000* Any one occurrence inclusive of costs 

                *Increasing to GBP£ 23,000,000 by way of excess layer with AIG   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(specify if different) 
 

 
 
Deductible: Each Occurrence  GBP£ 7,000                    Aggregate €        ------------ 

 

 
Warranties/Conditions Precedent   No           

 
 

If yes (a) Attach copies and (b) Indicate the number attached                 
 
 

The above  E.L. Policy includes the undernoted unless stated to the contrary: 
 

1.  Territorial Limits – European Union and elsewhere in the world for non-manual work 
 

2.  Jurisdiction – European Union 
 

 

3.  Liability to: 
 

3.1 

 

 
Labour Masters, Gang labour, Lumpers, Labour only sub-Contractors and Self employed Persons. 

3.2 
Persons hired from any Public Authority, Company, Firm or individual or persons engaged under 
Educational Training or Work Experience Programmes. 

 
4.  Liability assumed: 

4.1 
Under Plant Hire Agreements. 

 

4.2 
Under other forms of Contract/Agreement but only so far as concerns the Insureds’ legal liability 
to pay for bodily injury or disease to an Employee of the Insured. 

4.3 
Duties of acting as Project Supervisor for construction stage. 

 
5.  Indemnity to: 

5.1 
Principal in respect of the negligence of the Insured. 

 

5.2 
Principal to the extent of indemnity required under any contract of agreement for the 

performance of work. 
 

The above  E.L. Policy excludes the undernoted unless otherwise stated: 

1.  Construction, alteration, demolition or repair of Bridges, Towers, Steeples, Chimney Shafts, Blast Furnaces and 

Viaducts other than the following:  (specify below) 
 

  
2.  All work higher than: (specify below: e.g. Height, Storeys, etc.)  If no limit applies, state “None”. 

 

 NO HEIGHT LIMIT 
3.  Excavations Depth Limit:  If no limit applies, state “None”. 

 

 NO DEPTH LIMIT 
4.  Pile driving, tunnelling, quarrying or the use of explosives. 

5.  Offshore work of any kind. 

6.  Radioactive Contamination, Nuclear Explosion, etc. 

7.  War / Terrorism 

8.  Liability compulsorily insurable under any Road Traffic Act 

9.  Asbestos 
 

 
NB  Please attach details of any  other non-standard exclusions that apply. 
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Section 4 
 

PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE 
  Expiry Date    31

ST
 Oct 2019 

               ACE 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

Each Claim GBP£ 7,000 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

Aggregate € -- 

 

 
 
 

 
Policy Number(s) IECASA07977 

Insurer(s) 

 
                                                                             Any one occurrence inclusive of costs     Aggregated any one period  

Limit of Indemnity           

(excluding Products) 

GBP£ 4,500,000*  Unlimited 

Products Liability 

 

GBP£ 4,500,000* GBP£ 4,500,000 any one period 

    *Increased to GBP£ 25,000,000 by way of Excess Layers with AIG 

 

Inner or Aggregate Limits  

Fire/Explosion                  € 

Hot Work                         € 

Vibration, Removal or 

Weakening of Supports  € 

Sudden/Accidental 

Pollution                          € 

Efficacy                           € 

Others –                         € 

Please Specify 

Deductible* 
 
 
 

Deductibles 
 

 
Deductible applies to all claims Yes  
 

 

Deductible applies to property damage claims only  No 
 

 

Warranties/Conditions Precedent  No  

If Yes attach copies. 

 
The above  P.L. Policy includes the undernoted unless stated to the contrary: 
 
1.  Territorial Limits - European Union and elsewhere in the world for non-manual work 
 
2.  Jurisdiction -  European Union 
 

 
 
3.  Bringing/taking away of a vehicle beyond the limits of the Carriageway. ( NON RTA ) 
 
4.  Indemnity to: 
 
4.1 Principal in respect of the negligence of the Insured. 

 

4.2 
Principal to the extent of indemnity required under any contract of agreement for the performance 

of work. 
 

5.  Liability for damage to Buildings (including Contents) temporarily occupied for the purpose of cleaning, 

alteration, maintenance or repair. 
 
6.  Liability of: 
 
6.1 Labour Masters, Gang labour, Lumpers, Labour only sub-Contractors and Self employed 

Persons. 
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6.2 Persons hired from any Public Authority, Company, Firm or individual or persons engaged 

under Educational Training or Work Experience Programmes. 
 

7.  Liability Assumed: 
 
7.1 Under Plant Hire Agreements but always excluding liability for loss or damage to the hired or 

borrowed plant itself. 
 

7.2 Under indemnity clauses for standard building contract agreements. 
 
 
8.  Non-Road Traffic Act Liability for all mechanically powered vehicles. 
 

 
 
The above  P.L. Policy Excludes the undernoted unless otherwise stated: 
 
1.  Construction, alteration, demolition or repair of Bridges, Towers, Steeples, Chimney Shafts, Blast Furnaces and 

viaducts other than the following:   (specify below) 

 
 

2.  All work higher than: (specify below, e.g. height, storeys, etc.)  If no limit applies, state “None”. 
       
          NO HEIGHT LIMIT    

 

3.  Excavations other than the following:  (specify below)  If no limit applies, state “None”. 
 
          NO DEPTH LIMIT   

 

4.  Pile driving, tunnelling, quarrying or the use of explosives. 
 

5.  Offshore work of any kind. 
 
6.  Radioactive Contamination, Nuclear explosion etc. 
 
7.  War/Terrorism 
 
8.  Property belonging to the Insured or in the Insured’s custody and control, with exceptions. 
 
9.  Defective Workmanship and Materials but not liability resulting therfrom. 
 
10. Road Traffic Act Liability. 
 
11. Gradual Pollution. 
 
12. The ownership/operation of Marine Craft/Aircraft. 
 
13. Liquidated Damages/Penalty Clause 

14. Asbestos 

15. Loss or damage due to design (but not the consequences of defective design) 

Continue below if necessary 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 
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Section 5 
 

 

CONTRACTORS “ALL RISKS” 
 
 
 
Policy No:                 IECRNA08286    Expiry Date:                      31st Oct 2019 
 

                            
 

Insurer(s):                        ACE 
 

 

Sums Insured: 
 

(a)  Contract works, temporary works, GBP£ 8,000,000  

                 material per contract                                
 

 

(b)  Constructional Plant, Tools, Equipment 

and Temporary Buildings used in 

connection with the Contract  GBP£ 770,000 OWN PLANT – GBP£ 490,000 HIRED-IN PLANT 
 
 
(c) Housing contracts limit (if any) applicable               
to any one building or block of buildings  =    FULL LIMIT 

 
 
(d)  Any one Item hired-in Plant GBP 490,000 

 

(e) Debris Removal Costs up to € INCLUDED IN SUM INSURED 

(f) Architects’/Surveyors’/ 
  

 
Consulting Engineers’ Fees up to € INCLUDED IN SUM INSURED 

 
Deductible : 

Contract Works    GBP£ 888 

Own Plant            GBP£ 888 

Hired-in-Plant       GBP£ 888 
 
Warranties/Conditions  No 

If Yes attach copies. 

 
The above  C.A.R. Policy includes the undernoted unless stated to the contrary: 
 

1.  Territorial Limits – European Union,  

 
2.  Loss/damage occurring during the maintenance period - minimum period 12 months 

3.  The property insured whilst in transit within the Territorial Limits excluding: 

(a)  
Air or sea transits. 

(b)  
Mechanically propelled vehicles whilst under their own power. 

(c)  
Employees tools and personal effects. 

4.  Public Authorise Clause. 

5.  Free issue materials. 

6.  Off site storage. 

7.  The Employer/Principal as a joint Insured if required by Contract. 
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8.  Inflation. 

9.  Additional Expenses to avoid delay in completion of the works. 
 
The above  C.A.R. Policy Excludes the undernoted unless otherwise stated: 
 
1.  Wear and Tear 
 
2.  Consequential Losses 
 
3.  Loss or damage due to use., occupation or possession by or on behalf of the Employer.. 
 
4.  Defective Design Workmanship and Materials but not the consequences thereof 
 
5.  Stocktaking Losses 
 
6.  Loss or damage due to design 
 
7.  Penalties 
 
8.  Existing Buildings 
 
9.  Certificate of Completion 
 
10. War/Terrorism 
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Section 6 
 
 

ENGINEERING INSURANCE 
 

NONE THROUGH MARSH 
Policy No: Expiry Date: 
 

 
Insurer(s): 
 

 
Does your Policy cover:- 

 
1.  Third party liability unless insured under Public Liability policy Yes No 

 
Limit of Indemnity € 

 
 
2.  Accidents occurring anywhere in Ireland Yes No 

 
3.  Republic of Ireland Jurisdiction  Yes No 

 
4.  Indemnity to Principals if Third Party liability covered Yes No 

 
If yes, limit: €    
 

Any one accident: €    
 

Any one period: €    
 

5.  Damage to goods being lifted  Yes No 

 
If yes, limit: €    
 

6.  Inspection of all Plant requiring statutory examination Yes No 



1 

0 

 

Section 7 
 

 

MOTOR INSURANCE 
 

 
Policy No:                CK MFN 5671038                 Expiry Date:                   31ST October  2019 
 

                           
 

Insurer(s):               ALLIANZ      
 
 

 
Does your policy cover: 
 

1. All mechanically propelled vehicles and Plant in respect of liability under the 

Road Traffic Acts. OWNED,HIRED OR LEASED TO THE INSURED 
  

Yes 
 
X No 

 
2. 

 
Trailers whilst attached  

  
Yes 

 
X No 

3.  Commercial Vehicle indemnity limit for Third Party Property Damage             
*INCREASED TO *GBP£5,000,000 BY WAY OF EXCESS LAYER WITH 
AIG             

£ 
 
4,000,000* 

 

4. Passenger Liability for unlimited number of passengers 
If “no”, please state extent of cover 

 Yes X 
 

No 
 

5. 
 

Use of Mechanical Plant as a tool of trade including damage 

to underground services and bridges. (RTA RISKS) 
 

 

 
Yes 

 

 
X No 

 

6.  Include damage to any weighbridge, road or anything in or below the surface of a road due to the weight of or vibration caused by any 

vehicle or plant being used by you or on your behalf in the performance of the Contract? 

 
Yes No 

 
 
7.  Do the Territorial Limits automatically include Ireland and the UK?                              Yes             X                No 

 
 
8.  Indemnity to principals                                                                                                  Yes           X                 No 

  
9.  Have you investigated and confirmed the adequacy of the Motor insurance arranged by your: 

 
(a)      Suppliers                                                                                                                         Yes                        No    X 

(b)      Plant Hirers                                                                                                             Yes                         No   X 

(c)       Sub-Contractors                                                                                                         Yes                           No X



1 

1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Section 8 

 

 

PROFESSIONAL INDEMNITY 
 
 

 
Policy No:                  DCB 10886    Expiry Date:                   31/10/2019 
 

 
Insurer(s):              VARIOUS – LEAD INSURER AIG 
 

 
1.  Retroactive Date:                                                 NONE 
 

2.   Insured name as stated in the policy:  DORNAN ENGINEERING SERVICES LIMITED  
 

3.   Insured’s occupation as stated in the policy:                   CONSTRUCTION PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  
 

4.  State Limits of Indemnity in respect of:      

 

(a) Any one claim         

 

                     GBP £10 MILLION                                                         
 

(b) In the aggregate 
 

                     Unlimited any one period of insurance 

 

 

5.  State deductible applying to each and every claim                        

 

                                       

                                      GBP £75,000 EACH CLAIM  
 

 

6.   Confirm if policy includes automatic reinstatement of indemnity limit  N/A Policy provides “any one claim” limit  
 
 

Please attach in full any amendments or additional exceptions to the standard cover, and also to any warranties or special conditions. 
 
 
Signed: Colm Coffey, A.C.I.I. /Elaine Coleman, A.C.I.I. 
 

Dated: 30th October 2018  
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